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ATTACHMENT B

PASADENA PERMIT CENTER

www_cityofpasadena.net/pemmitcenter

Supplemental Application for
HISTORIC DESIGNATION

Note: In addition to this application, a completed Planning Division Master Application Form is
also required.

PROPERTY PROPOSED FOR DESIGNATION

1. Name of Property: Austin & Williams/Meyer house

2. Property Address: 880 So. Madison Avenue

3. Date of Original Construction |{1913-1914

4. Original Owner Charles A. Austin & Benjamin O. Williams
5. Architect / Builder: Louis DuPuget Millar/Grable & Austin

DESIGNATION CATEGORY
(CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX—SEE CRITERIA ON PAGES 2 & 3 FOR MORE INFORMATION):

[] HISTORIC MONUMENT
LANDMARK
[ ] HISTORIC SIGN

[ ] LANDMARK TREE

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Briefly describe the property proposed for designation, indicating whether the entire site or a portion
of the site is the subject of the nomination (e.g., how many buildings or objects on the site are
included in the nomination) or if the nomination is for an object, sign or tree. A map may be used for
the description. Please also submit recent and, if available, historical photographs. Use additional
sheets if necessary.

This is a 5-bedroom, craftsman style house with a detached garage. The original craftsman elements include Bacheldeny
fireplaces in the living room and adjacent study and restored mahogony interior woodwork. Although the attached
building biography describes the style of the house as colonial revival, it has many more elements typical of the
craftsman homes build by Grable & Austin prior to 1914, including a square projecting bay in the dining room, grouped
casement windows, and stucco used on the exterior in combination with wood shingles. Its most historically significant
resident to date was D.M. Linnard, a hotelier and one-time president of the Tournament of Roses Association. (see attgg

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON SIGNIFICANCE OF PROPERTY

With this application, please attach information that will assist staff with the preparation of a
designation report. Books, photographs, articles, and other archival information will all be useful to
document the significance of the nominated resource.

Refer to bibliography, historical photographs, chronology, and other supporting information.

Revised 4/2011
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PASADENA PERMIT CENTER

www.cityofpasadena.net/permitcenter

Supplemental Application for
HISTORIC DESIGNATION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Attach a copy of the most recently recorded legal description for the property (usually in the deed for

the property or other documents when the property was purchased—also available from a title
company).

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATION
Check the box under the category checked on first page that corresponds to the criterion under which

you are nominating the property, object, sign or tree for designation. Multiple boxes may be checked
if applicable.

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATING AN HISTORIC MONUMENT
(May include significant public or semi-public interior spaces and features)

A. ltis associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of the history of the region, state or nation.

B. It is associated with the lives of persons who are significant in the history of the region,
state or nation.

C. Itis exceptional in the embodiment of the distinctive characteristics of a historic
resource property type, period, architectural style or method of construction, or that is
an exceptional representation of the work of an architect, designer, engineer, or builder
whose work is significant to the region, state or nation, or that possesses high artistic
values that are of regional, state-wide or national significance.

D. It has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history of
the region, state or nation.

LI O |OO

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATING A LANDMARK

A. ltis associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of the history of the City, region, or State.

. Itis associated with the lives of persons who are significant in the history of the City,
region, or State.

NIn

C. It embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, architectural style, period, or
method of construction, or represents the work of an architect, designer, engineer, or
builder whose work is of significance to the City or, to the region or possesses artistic
values of significance to the City or to the region.

N

. It has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important locally in prehistory or
history.

[

Revised 4/2011
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THE BUILDING

BIOGRAPHER

TiM GREGORY

< Building Histories

< Cultural Resource Studies

< Historic Resources Surveys

% Locdl, State, and National Londmarking

«+ Historic Preservation and Archival Consulting

880 SOUTH MADISON AVENUE

PASADENA

Style: Colonial Revival

Year Completed: 1914

Designers and Builders: Grable & Austin, one of Pasadena’s most well-known design/build
firms. They were responsible for a number of houses in the Madison Heights area. The actual
plans for this house have been attributed to Louis DuPuget Millar, who at that time did most of

Grable & Austin’s design work. A biographical essay on Mr. Millar and more information on
Grable & Austin are attached. '

First Owners: Clarence A. Austin, of the firm of Grable & Austin, and Benjamin O. Williams,

who worked as a salesman for Grable & Austin. They built the house on speculation, selling it
soon after its completion.

Original Building Permit: #2804A, issued by the City of Pasadena on November 7,1913 for a
two-story, nine-room frame residence and garage. A copy of the permit is not available; in those
days, permits were entered into a ledger and not issued as separate documents. However, a

summary of the permit was published in the November 17, 1913 issue of the Pasadena Daily
News. A copy is attached.

Cost to Build: $6,000-a typical cost for a new home in Madison Heights at the time.

Other Biiilding Permits Found in City Files: A bathtub was replaced in July 1951 and a
dishwasher was installed the following month. In July 1955, a wall heater was installed.

In April 1956, a permit was issued for the construction of a swimming pool. To cost $2,800, it

would be designed by Mackintosh of Los Angeles and built by Anthony Brothers, Inc. of South
Gate.

A permit was issued in May 1960 for 39 linear feet of 6-foot redwood grape-stake fencing to be
installed at the rear of the property. The cost was $153.

Tel: (626) 792-7465 % Fax: (626) 793-5219
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In October 1971, two earthquake-damaged chimneys were to be repaired at a cost of $1,000. The
Dale Rogers Company of Pasadena was the contractor.

A permit to restructure and extend the basement was issued in May 1993. The cost was

estimated at $45,000. The following month, a permit was issued to seismically retrofit the house,
anchoring it to the foundation, at a cost of $3,700.

Copies of some of these permits are attached.

Assessor’s Records: The Pasadena City Assessor first visited the property, probably in 1915,
and recorded a single residence and garage. The house had a concrete foundation, shakes-
covered walls, a shingled roof with five gables, and plain exterior trim. Heat was provided by
two fireplaces and a gas furnace. There were fourteen plumbing fixtures. Interior finishes were
described as “plain” and “stock.” Built-in features included a buffet and four bookcases.

The Assessor estimated the square footage at 3,862. On the first floor were three living rooms
(one was probably a dining room), one bedroom, one bathroom, and a kitchen. The second floor
contained four bedrooms and two bathrooms. The house had a total of seven hardwood floors.
There was also a concrete basement that measured 22 by 76 feet and was 4 feet deep. The
detached garage measured approximately 20 feet square and had a concrete floor and a shingled
roof. The Assessor noted there were 1,900 square feet of concrete driveways on the property.

The Assessor returned on July 30, 1956 to record the completion of the swimming pool, which
measured approximately 18 by 38 feet.

On July 27, 1960, the Assessor recorded the installation of the fence. It was 6 feet high and 32
feet long.

Copies of the Assessor’s records are attached.

(Note: The Pasadena City Assessor’s Office ceased operations in 1974. Their square footage
totals often exceeded those of the Los Angeles County Assessor’s Office, since they frequently
included garages, terraces, patios, etc. in their computation. It is advisable to rely on the County
Assessor’s square footage figures since they are more up-to-date and consistent.)

Other Owners and Residents: After its completion, the house was sold to Charles K. and

Lorinda V. Meyer. No information was available about Mr. and Mrs. Meyer in local libraries
and archives.

After her husband’s death around 1917, Mrs. Meyer moved elsewhere in Pasadena and rented out
the Madison Avenue house. Her first tenants, in 1918, were Daniel M. Linnard and his wife
Emily J. Linnard. Mr. Linnard was one of the most recognized names in Pasadena’s then-
booming resort industry. He was owner and president of the California Hotel Company and
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acted as manager of three of Pasadena’s most popular hotels: the Maryland, the Green, and the
Huntington. Two biographical articles on Mr. Linnard are attached.

After about six years, Mrs. Meyer found a new tenant: George K. Hooper, who was Pasadena’s
city engineer and assistant city manager. He shared the house with his wife Mary L. Hooper. A
biographical article on Mr. Hooper is attached. Mrs. Meyer passed away during the Hoopers’
tenancy, but title to the property remained with her estate until 1939 and with Henry W. Meyer
into the 1940s. The house apparently remained vacant from 1931 to 1936.

In 1937, the property was rented for one year to Frank C. and Marjorie Walker. They were
followed by Harold J. and Browning C. Rounds, from 1938 to 1940. Described as an
“internationalist,” Mr. Rounds was involved in the overseas work of the Y.M.C.A., serving as its

Western field secretary, and was also active in World Literacy, Inc. An article on Mr. Rounds is
attached.

Between 1941 and 1942 Anderson Barden Smedley and his wife Mary E. Smedley were the
residents. Mr. Smedley was an author and consultant in the field of electrical engineering.

Before moving to Pasadena, he had worked for the Ananconda Copper Company. His entry in
the Pasadena Community Book is attached.

Mrs. Ann H. Dexter was the resident, beginning in 1943. Mrs. Dexter owned a beauty shop at 84
North Los Robles. By 1947, Alice Ohlschlager, who worked as a receptionist for Mrs. Dexter,
and her husband George W. Ohlschlager had become the residents. Mr. Ohlschlager worked as a

brakeman for the Southern Pacific Company. He later became a switchman for the Santa Fe
Railway.

By 1951, William W. Simpson and his wife Elizabeth A. Simpson had become the owners.

Mr. Simpson was vice-president and general manager of the Pryde Winfield Company. He later
worked a salesman and then as an engineer for Judson Roberts. Title transferred to
Mrs. Simpson as sole owner in February 1980.

Arvind Bhambri and Shobita Misra have been the owners since February 1993.
Significance: In its architectural and historical resources survey conducted in 1993, the City of

Pasadena determined that this property is eligible for listing on a local inventory of significant
resources as part of a potential Madison Heights historic district.



Sources:
Los Angeles Public Library
City of Pasadena, Planning Department (Design & Historic Preservation Section)
Pasadena Public Library
Pasadena Museum of History (Research Library and Archives)

Carew, Harold D. History of Pasadena and the San Gabriel Valley.
Chicago, S. J. Clarke, 1930.
Gebhard, David and Robert Winter. An Architectural Guidebook to Los Angeles.
Salt Lake City, Gibbs-Smith, 2003.
McAlester, Virginia and Lee. A4 Field Guide to American Houses.
New York, Knopf, 1984.
McGroarty, John Steven. Los Angeles: From the Mountains to the Sea.
New York, American Historical Society, 1921.
Pasadena Community Book, 1943 and 1951.

City Directories: 1914-

Pasadena Daily News: November 17, 1913
Pasadena Star-News: September 26, 1916; July 2, 1917, March 24 and June 21, 1965

Tim Gregory

The Building Biographer

400 East California Blvd., #3

Pasadena, CA 91106-3763

Phone: 626-792-7465; Fax: 626-793-5219
e-mail: timgregory@sbcglobal.net

Copyright
September 2004
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decided 1o hold the Tournament, rain or shine. Fortunately the sun did shine
for a while during the parade. Mr. Linnard hopes that once the event is re-
sumed after the war nothing will ever be allowed to interfere with it, and that
oo steps will ever be taken to have it held any place but in Pasadena, as it is
Pasadena’s rightful heritage,

Mr. Linnard. was the originator of California Incorporated which later
developed into the All Year Club of Southern California, and he started an
organization to work for good roads in Southern California—at a time there
were no paved roads here outside the ciry limits of Los Angeles. The work of
this organization was ultimately responsible for the good roads campaign all
over the United Srataes.

Amother of his ideas was the organizaton of the first Aviation Club in
the United States which was formed in 1910 and promoted America’s first atc
meet for which Pasadena was host, and the next year Pasadena was the terminus
of the first transcontinenral flight made by Cal P. Rodgers in fifty-nine days—
New York to Pasadena! When the first air meet was held at Dominguez Field
all the flyers and other enthusiasts made their headquarters at the old Maryland,
with Paulhan, the famous French flyer, and Mrs. Albert Sherman Hoye, well-
known social leader, leading the grand march at che ball celebrating the event.
In 1937 Mr. Linnard was presented with a plaque, commemorative of his
encouragement of aviation, by the National Aerographic Academy.

While he has been far afield, Pasadena always has been and always will
be his home and favorite place. Even though his activities have constandy
broadened, he has invariably devoted a large share of his time to his interests
here and has done probably more than any other one man to spread che fame
of Pasadena. : :

Mr., Linnard's wife was formerly Miss Emily Beanett. Their son, LeRoy,
is the older of two children. Dorothy, the daughter, married Mr. S. W. Royce
of the Huntingron Hotel in Pasadena.

A fitting summing up of Mr. Linnard is contained in the following words
of a friend: “He has had the vision to conceive the hospitality that is cruly
Caltfornian.” ‘



D. M. Lixyarp. It is only obvious logic to assert that Southern
California would represent only a small part of its present significance
to the world at large if its hotel facilities and comiorts had lingerea
behind other phases of development. Hundreds.of the men who have
becoriie permanent residents and have given their business ability and re-
sources to the improvement of Los Angeles and the state gained their
first liking for this country on account of the comforts they enjoyed in
its hotels.

No one man has done more to convert the hotels into a great and
vital asset, particularly at Pasadena, which for years has been one of the
world’s most noted winter resorts, than D. M. Linnard, who is now man-
aging director and executive head of corporations capitalized at twenty-
five million dollars, with half a dozen splendid hotels in California and
in the East.

 Mr. Linnard began his career as a landlord in Pasadena. It is
appropriate to review briefly the hotel history of Pasadena. The first
hotel, a small one known as the Lake Vineyard House, was erected n
1880. Four years later T. E. Martin of San Jose built the Webster Hotel
at the corner of Colorado Street and Fair Oaks Avenue, and subsequently
this became the Grand. During the early eighties Mrs. Emma C. Bangs
bought several acres between Orange Grove Avenue and Arroyo Seco,
below what is now Colorado Street, and conducted 2 boarding and rocm-
ing house there. After her death in 1903 the Crown City Investment
Company bought the property and subsequently built what is now the
Vista Del Arroyo Hotel. Walter Raymond opened the Raymond Hotel
in 1886 at a cost of four hundred thousand dollars. This was really
Pasadena’s first tourist hotel. Tt was burned in 1895 but subsequently re-
. built on a larger scale. In 1886 was also opened the Carlton, built by 2
syndicate. The Painter was put up near the foothills in 1887, the name
being changed later to La Pintoresca. It was burned December 31, 1912,
and was never rebuilt.

What later became the Green Hotel was started in 1887 by E. C.
Webster. Colonel Green took over the property in 1891, and the present
Green contains five hundred rooms and is famed the world over.

In 1900 D. M. Linnard in order to learn the hotel business managed
a Pasadena boarding house, a large one, but far from being 2 hotel. In
less than twenty years he has become one of the greatest hotel men in
the West and in fact in the entire country. He has had a genius for
consolidation of hotels and systematic management of enormous prop-
erties. For a time he had the management of the old La Case Grande
Hotel, and in 1903 bought the first unit of what is now the Maryland,
which had been built a year or two before by Colin Stewart. He at once
started on a general plan of enlargement, vastly increasing the size and
facilities of the Maryland. He alsc conceived the idea of an auxiliary:
bungalow system to supplement and improve the service of the main
hotel. At the present there are thirty-four bungalows on an eight-acre
tract, all operated in connection with the Maryland. The original Mary-
land was burned April 18, 1914, but was at once rebuilt, with the splendid
structure which thousands know and have patronized as their home in
California. Myron Hunt was the architect of the present Maryland.

Henry E. Huntington in 1914 bought what was known as the Went-
worth Hotel, then incompleted because of financial difficulties encoun-
tered by the firm of promoters. Mr. Huntington took it over after a
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million dollars had been expended, engaged the service of Architect
Myron Hunt, and in 1914 the present Huntington was opened with D. M.
Linnard as manager.

In 1917 Mr. Linnard organized the California Hotel Company with a
capitalization of four million dollars. He and members of his family
held most of the stock. The company bought the Huntington with its
four hundred and fifty rooms, and the Green with its five hundred rooms,
and since then he has operated them as well as the Maryland, which
contains four hundred rooms. In the samec year he took the management
of the Fairmont Hotel in San Francisco, subsequently acquiring the lease,
furnishings and equipment. In the winter of 1918-19 he assumed the
management of the Palace Hotel at San Francisco, and then bought the
Potter at Santa Barbara and renamed it the Belvedere. In June, 1919,
the Ambassador at Atlantic City was opened under Mr. Linnard’s man-
agement, and the same month he completed negotiations for the erection
of a six bundred room hotel in New York to cost ten million dollars,
to be called the Linnard. He also let the contract for a five million
dollar hotel in Los Angeles to be known as the California.

In less than twenty years the Linnard name and the service it
represents have become an institution on the Pacific Coast and also at
two of the most congested travel centers of the Atlantic seaboard.
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D. M. Linnard Reccives Big
" Shock in the Land of

Cherry Blossoms.

KEEN INTEREST IN -
ROSE TOURNAMENT

Hawaiians: and Orientals
Enthustastic Over the
Parade Entries,

i
i M Lamzid, president of ahe
Ruse Tonrmament asswoation amd
tiatager of Hotels Maryhanl, Hout-
wRten and  Green, who aetuined
pheeme th neotmy from a anp of
] a1e werks 1o Honoluln anil Japan,
Pin buth o whieh places e was o
!-f\xlul m aecurmy cmiries {or the
llh-r.ul patade Junnary 1, says thae
1at lust he has tound a repgon wherr
:lhr name Pasadena means nothing
05 cenese be alicady has taken
steps 1o temedy 1he sntuation

“lu eoitam party ol Japan there
s 3 very lape torcnen peepilation,
wmuw h o1 11 weaslthy, and pawven to
tavel” saud Mr Lnord teaday. TIt
camie sy x sk 1o me when |
leatned that these prople did not
Know ui Pasadraa’s e as a bean-
titul place of resdonee amd attiuc-
uve tounst resert. Most of aher
travel Bad been i Furope, Asia, the
Oivat, and  even  Ativa—ahuost
every place except Amesica. They
had beard of Adantie Uiy, hnew
that 1t and Floruda were kpnown as
plessuie seserts, aml were launhar
with the names New York and San
Francwsco, bot of Pasadena they ap-
prently had no kanowledge.  They
liad heard of Califorma, bt the
name San Frawnciseo  scemed to
mean more 1 them than that of the

and San Franosco hetels.

state as a whole. In some o the
ponapal hoteds 1 ogan actoss e
tutes of New York, Aduntic ny:

FPasadenx Unknown

“This samie spweaam e regardmnyg
Sounthem Cabiima was apparent
among the 2 passengors wath
Twhian 1 oretnenedd on the boat. e
PFasudenans sort of have an sdea
that the fame of cnr beauniful ey
has apicad to the dartieest corneis
uf the warld, and 1o come acroas
such gnotance selative to onr at-
tractinns oy J oencomntored 1 almuost
unbehovahle 1 arrangrd G bhave
ctuies of the Green, Maryland and
hunlm,;l--n hotels put an many of
the baygest hotels ot Jepun, and tn
have Dhtrratmie  advertiaug laea
idena plared whese ot will e apy 10
fun the st gl Whide Califor-
ma has been abighierd by o mapernty
ol the {orcigs Lennsds § came in
contact with, there are indicaticns
thut they tntend to apend muorce ol
their tme m Amcrne heresfier,
“and that talforma will secene
tahiare of theu attention

1 feund peaple an Japan and the
Hawanan piands much uterested
in what I had 1o 53y about o k.-..'i
Tournament parede, and they du )
playrd cemhusiasin sy aocepting oy
v atatiods b rnter Hoate sz thie yesT
fleral geaceant  Hoth countries en-
traesd hiearnly st the plan, aul
they wlieady are kg pleane fon
the event I helieve the fleats they
will send  to Pasadena sl be
ameny the est  magmbe et anl
unique ever secen here

Trip 1a Delightiul

“The 1y wross the Vacthe ic a
de hghtinl one Amvanr wha can
albondd o tale the ponrney and dora
nat s malang a g mistake boaery
tmnnte Is plrasant, aml, ol cograe,
the Jawauan sslamide siad the et
ate wondoiully anteresting 1 oapem
cnby seven daya s Japan, but 1 ke
wenng Yk mght asnd dax. and mun
agrd tooare a” gend deal an tha
thne Japun is |n-uprv--u\ untl the
war N1 lu\ulx i

a3 in Afncrica whe
making of uwithonaires, Business
conditions  are generally satisfuc-
tory in the Hawanan islands.

"l haven't been back long. enough
te {formulate plans jor Hote) Green
this arason, turther than thaae owm- !
lincd at the tune of my departure.
Fine progeess has been made on
nnprovements 2t the Maryland, 1
um preatly pleased with the outlonk
fur Pasadena ay a whole, and ounr
hatels  in panticular, 1hc conting
scason’

DA NSHANRL,

e
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TEW LINKARD
H!]TEL UPENG -
L INTAGOR

——5-{6~35.
Pasadena Operator Now

Has Beautiful New
Northwest House

TG D:”" ot e e

ST R T AN YT L

MANY FRIENDS
.. 'SEND TELEGRAMS

Joseph Caunt "arid Other,
Pasadenans Present
. at Inangural -

The 'new “Hotel Winthrop in
Tacoma. Wash,, which will be
under the direction of D. AL Lig-
gpard of -Pasadena. opcnm
§367 the first ‘time 1bday, =and
¥ronight will be the - scenc of a
Jbrilliant inaugural rcccpuon enter-
E‘ta!m’n:nt -and bak. - 1
:Mr...Linnard is in Tacoma ‘for
_thc opening, as s . also- Joseph
Launt -of this citwx wWho is -an
fassodiate of “Mr. Linnard in ‘his
zhov.cl organization.
4 A great many of Mr. Linnard's!
Hiriends in  Pasadena -and - other |
“Caiifornia .cities “-sent the noted:
hotel .operator ;congratulatorv tele-
£rams  -today, -conveying: Dbest
Hwishes for the snccess of the new-
~cst ‘bostelry -in " the Linnard -c_hain.j
- Reveral rmembers of - Mr. Lin-}
J'al’ds organization -are in Tacoma
Jor the Winthrop ppening. among |
“tkem’ . Prol. ‘Henr “Van~ Praag of
Riliisopity, adirestor zof -music -at-the:
LLmnﬁ’d -hotels and ~irfiioso of ‘the ;

viohni. Linnatd's Classica] ~“Califor- ;

mans;.;ihe 2dance »orche.slra -xvhich
P:rh 5 t-2he--Pasadena Lin-
inacd -hotel the ;past :scason; Arthur
?s.or‘bun and-Miss -3 onica .Dunn

0. every . Qcm\_ Il,

_‘Lagnma, :

LINNARD, D. M.
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‘8— Star-News EDITORIALS  Friday, Sept. 2, 1945

D. M. Linnard Mourned
as Man of Vision

D. M. Linnard of Pasadena, who died this morning, was

..a symbol of the glorious place on the American scene that

Southern California has become. Indeed, he was one of the
.chief instruments that wrought its glories, for he envisioned
‘them long ago. :

A farm-bred boy ‘from New Jersey, he decided as a
‘young man that his destiny was in the West. He became
‘the first champion ‘of the philosophy that Pasadena was an
“all-year” city, that Southern California was an “all-year”
vacation land. Previously most of the country had thought
of California merely as a winter resort. The All-Year Club
of latter years is, in a sense, a monument to Mr. Linnard’s
perception. He was one of those who led the early cam-
paigns for “good roads”; campaigns so successful that pres-
ently California had the best highways in the nation, and
the largest ownership of private automobiles. He was a
-pioneer, in a way, of West Coast aviation, also; he was
the sponsor of first flights to, and about, Pasadean.

Mr. Linnard helped to perpetuate Pasadena’s world-
-famed Tournament of Roses. When he was president of the
Tournament years ago rain fell in torrents at the New
_Year’s season. Faint hearts wanted to cancel the rose pd-
rade. Mr. Linnard said no; the parade must go on. That
"has become a Tournament of Roses tradition.

His energy, like his vision, was immense. He found
time to plunge into all praiseworthy causes for the benefit
of city, state, country. Pasadena, in particular, will pay
him the tribute of fond memory for his many services to
this community. At one time he operated hotels from Cali-
fornia to New York and Atlantic City, but his home and
heart remained here. Here he had opened hotels, like the
original Maryland and had then had “thrown away the
key.” There was a like procedure when he operated the
Huntington, the Vista del Arroyo, the Green. The hotels
he operated became noted for hospitality that was reflected
‘in the very development of Pasadena. People who came
‘here were so charmed by their reception at Mr. Linnard’s
hotels and by the community that they remained as perma-
nent residents. Many leading citizens first knew Pasadena
through her hotels.

Of Mr. Linnard’s own charm of personality, his warmth

:and generosity, much could be written. “D.M.” was the"

,good friend of three generations of Pasadenans and count-
'less other persons over the continent.
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D. M. Linnard, Hotel Man,
Civic Leader for Many
Years, Dies af 82 Years

D. M. Linnard, famous Pasadena hoiel man and a civic leader
of many years, died this morning as he had lived—with buoyant
courage.

He had a recurrence of a brain tumor for which he underwent
a successful operation 20 years ago. He was told that another
operation was
imperative but
that it was only
a 50-50 chance.
“Go ahead,” said
Mr. Linnard. He
underwent the
operationon
Monday. But
even his courage
"was no match
. for the odds and
"hisyears—he
was 82, He
- passed away at
- 6:30 am. in a lo-
cal hospital.
Mr. Linnard,
.often called by
other hotel op-
erators ‘“‘the best
hotel man in
N America,” was
also a pioneer in
many move-
ments connected

‘ern California in
particular.
Pioneered ‘All
Year' Idea
He pioneered
in the move-

( Star News
) Sept.2,1949

= ment to make
D. M. LINNARD . this an *“all-
.. . Hotel Man Widely Mourned year” vacation-

land and resi-
dential place. He “threw away the key” of his Pasadena‘ hotels,




keeping theﬁm round. Hitherto most hotels had
been open only in winter. Many Jeading cltizens of Pasadena were
first churmed with the ¢ty as Mr. Linnard's hotel guests.

He was one of the organizers of the All-Year Club of Southern
California and instigated the first meeting at the Maryland Hotel,
which he then owned. )

Mr. Linnard also called the first “good roads” meeting in
_Southern California, at the Maryland. He campaigned vigorously
|f0r “good roads” and had the satisfaction of seeing California
lead the country in the building of better highways and the en-
couragement of modern automobiling. He also sponsored the first
Layipr meet” in Pasadena, induced the first transcontinental {lyer to
lmake Pasadena his Western terminus. . He was an indefatigible
!booster, and user, of all modes of travel
i Tourney President ,

‘ He was an early-day president of the Pasadena Tournament of
Roses and established the tradition that “the parade must go on.”
The Tournament might not have survived as a permanent annual
New Year's event had it not been for his determination. That
New Vear's season was one of “unusual weather”; torrential rains
fell, streets of the period were quagmires. Less resolute Tourna-
ment men wanted to abandon the whole enterprise, call off the
iparade. “No,” said Mr. Linnard, “there’ll be a parade if I have
to push a wheelbarrow up Colorado Street alone.” Stirred by his
insistence, the other Tournament people took heart and joined him
in holding the purade—as advertised.

Came Here in 1901

Mr. Linnard came here from his native New Jersey in 1501
and his first Pasadena hotel was a modest pension called La Casa
Grande, which stood at the northwest corner of Colorado Street
and Euclid Avenue. Touched by his managerial magic, La Casa;
Grande become successiul, popular. .

A few years laler he crossed Euclid Avenue and built and,
operated the first Maryland Hotel, forerunner of a'later I\larylandl
Hotel, that became still later the site of the Broadway store.

He subsequently¥ acquired the Huntington Hotel from Henry
E. Huntington and “threw away the key.” He later operated the
Vista del Arrovo and Green hotels and his reputation as a hotel
man grew. His hotlels became known for, their hospitality; his
operational techniques so widely known that hotel men elsewhere,
sent their songto Mr. Linnard to learn the business.

Mr.-Linnard at one time operated hotels from Pasadena to San
Francisco, from Los Angeles 1o New York and Atlantic City, and
up the West Coast to Tacoma.

Operated Coast to Coast

He built and operated, when first opened, the Ambassador
hotels in Los Angeles, New York and Atlantic City. At two dif-
ferent periods, he owned the Fairmount Hotel in San Fransco, the
|1ast period in association with his partner and son-in-law, Stephen
W. Royce. - The Whitcomb, San Francisco, the Winthrop in Ta-
coma and the Potter and Samarkand hotels in Santa Barbara were
once under his wing.

My. Linnard was one of the first hotel operators to initiate
hotel entertainments on a lavish scale. Paul Whiteman’s orches-
tra first played at his California hotels and he once hrought ¥red
Waring's Pennsylvanians from the Fairmont to the Maryland in
special railroad cars. . )

In latter years Mr. Linnad had disposed of his hotel interests
but continued actively to counsel Mr. Royce and LeRoy Linnard,
his -son, in their operations at the Huntinglton and the Green.
Until his last illness Mr. Linnard made frequent trips to Honolulu
Dy air to assist Mr. Royce, now managing director of the two big-
gest hotels, in addition to his operation of the Huntington here. |




